MINUTES OF MEETING SOUTH-DADE	NTURE
COMMUNITY DEVELO	ENT DISTRICT

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the South-Dade Venture Community Development District was held on Thursday, August 26, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. at Waterstone Bay Clubhouse, 1355 Waterstone Way, Homestead, Florida 33033.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Miguel Aponte Jessica Cabrera Curtis Cooper Victor Valladares Michael Cruz
 Chairman
Vice Chairman Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary



Also present was:

Scott Cochran Paul Winkeljohn Ben Quesada Ed Alonzo
 District Attorney District Manager
Governmental Management Services Resident




FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS	Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
Mr. Aponte called the meeting to order and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all who attended the meeting.

SECON	0	R OF BUSINESS	Approval  of the Minutes of the
July 22, 2021 Meeting
Mr. Aponte:  So, item No. 2 we have the approval of the minutes for the July 22, 2021 meeting.  Do we have motion to approve?


On MOTION by Mr. Cooper seconded by Ms. Cabrera with all in favor, the Minutes of the July 22, 2021 Meeting were approved.
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THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS	Public  Hearing  to  Adopt  the  Fiscal
Year 2022 Budget
	Motion to Open the Public Hearing

Mr. Aponte:  Item No. 3 Paul, do you want to take this one over?
Mr. Winkeljohn:	Sure.	Today is the budget hearing for adoption of the 2022 fiscal year, and we'd like to open the hearing by motion to formally begin the hearing.


On MOTION by Ms. Cabrera seconded by Mr. Valladares with all in favor, opening the Public Hearing was approved.
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	Public Comment and Discussion

Mr. Winkeljohn: So, at this point the public hearing is now open, and we would take public comment, can you look on your phone and see if we have any members of the public attending today?
Mr. Aponte:  No, there are none.
Mr. Winkeljohn: So, at this time there are no members of the public virtually or present attending, so a motion to close the public comment portion of the hearing would be in order.


On MOTION by Ms. Cabrera seconded by Mr. Valladares with all in favor, closing the public comment portion of the hearing was approved.
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	Consideration of Resolution #2021-08 Annual Appropriation Resolution

Mr. Winkeljohn: Now it would be the Board's discussion of the resolutions. As you know, you've approved a proposed budget and with no change to the prior year's assessment, resolution #2021-08 accomplishes that as well, and it also puts forth a budget that reflects our expectation of service level, and contractual requirements of the District, the rest is up to you all, and staff recommends approval. So, if there are any questions, I can take them about the assessment or the budget. I have a few budgetary announcements that I can make at this time. We have not received the actual money from FEMA just in case that's in the back of your minds, we expect it in the next 30 days or so, but for today's purposes it has not been received but it will be. The second thing
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is, believe it or not, and I still don't believe what I'm about to say, your 2012 refinancing bond is re-financeable in 2022, which it would be March, 2022. The bond community has looked at it, and is projecting a 30% savings to that bond with today's interest rates, and there's a few mechanisms that we can engage that would kind of use today's guarantee of that rate into March, not today's, but let's call it the fall, where it closes in March, and that's a 30% savings for the payment for that debt, and that opens up a lot of discussion for you. The limitations are, and there's a couple of them, the bond for 2012 covers a little less than half the community, phase 1 I believe, and theirs is about
$600 of debt per year, which is meaningful, 30% of that is under $180, so that's something to think about assuming that it's that good of a savings, which we expect it to be close to that. So, those individuals would have  the  opportunity  of  a  discount. There's a lot of ways, and we can talk about it after the budget hearing, but there's a lot of ways where you might look more global and I would even go so far as to say, you might even consider waiting another year to really make big decisions, but your 2013 bond which refinanced a year later, will be ripe a year later, and so that will cover the other half of the community, so then you have three things moving. You've got the reimbursement from FEMA which has its problems, you've got a lowering of the 2013 in theory, and the little player in the middle that can kind of muck the waters up is the 2008 gate bond has a covenant in it that you can't refinance without their  approval.  It's Regions Bank, and what they do that for is that if there's a way for them to get, if they want the principal back, they could say no, unless you pay us off, so they're a player. The last time they did that when we refinanced, they lowered their rate, so they played to be nice, and we can't promise that. So, today there's no action on these items but just in the back of your minds that you've got a couple of hundred dollars  to  each resident in play in the next two years in savings. How you choose to spend that is a whole other conversation, spend by giving it back to them, spend by buying infrastructure, and then your assessment level, the $70, you increase it, this time next year is when I would recommend making that kind of decision because you'll know what 2013 is looking like, you'll already have the 2012, and you'll have another year of storms behind you, and you'll have another year of savings in front of you, so I think that's the


ideal time but it's up to you all for today's purposes, but again, I'm recommending approval as is.
Mr. Cooper: Seeing that we have gotten I believe what 90%, or we'll be getting 90% of the 100% of the FEMA reimbursement, I would have the Board entertain maybe not reducing the $70 asked of the residents, but at least do a third of that, so say $23 or
$24 that we give back to them. I know there's a lot of things that potentially might be going up, security being one of them, so the last thing I would want to do is reduce everything and then ask for an increase the following year, but I think for me, I'd like to see that, to at least give some of the money back, at least $23 or $24, reduce everybody's  assessments.
Mr. Aponte: I would have to say, to me it's not the right time to give the money back, we know what's coming down the line, and as you mentioned, it's to decrease and then increase again, so we're just playing games, how much is enough, $10 or $12 we just don't know, I mean we're talking about, if we do $20 more dollars, you're talking about $2 a month going back to the residents, it's not meaningful. I think we owe it to the residents to make a decision based on what we know is going to happen next year, so the way I see it, I would leave it as is, just let it roll over and then deal with it next year, that's my opinion.
Mr. Cooper: We did a $6 increase per month for residents for storm repairs, so I know you're saying $2 isn't a lot, but neither was $6, and with regards to the possible doing of refinancing to use that for other projects, or either reducing people's taxes even further, I like a third of what we asked for before, because we weren't getting the reserves, we had to use our reserves for the storms, and now that we've got that money back, maybe it should go back to the residents. I mean it's not going to go back to people that have moved out or whatever, but at least moving forward, giving the opportunity to at least see some relief with everything going up around us.
Mr. Aponte:  What do you guys think?
Ms. Cabrera:  In my opinion, I would love to put money back in people's pocket if there's an opportunity, but I don't want to compromise any services, nor do  I want to give a false expectation to people.  I don't know if it's feasible right now, because I don't


know, I really had a chance to look at this security contract, and so I don't know if it's feasible right now, and I don't want to make false promises, that's just my opinion.
Mr. Cooper: What's the highest quote that we have to look at?
Mr. Aponte: Well, before we even go into that, we can't discuss that right now, we don't know what it's going to look like, we haven't chosen or picked the companies we're going to use, if we're going to change in the future, I think we need to talk about what we have on the table today, knowing what's going to happen with the minimum wage being increased. So, I mean if the decision needs to be made as of today for that, that would be a discussion for the following year, whether we want the decrease, or whether we're going to change security companies or not, whether we're going to look for different options that may be out there on the table, but as of today, we work with what we have today and we know that, first of all we don't have our money back, we know it's not here yet, hopefully it will get here in 30 days, or it may be 60 days, we don't know that. So, my recommendation is what's in front of us right now is what we know is guaranteed, everything else is we're just trying to predict the future as far as if the money is going to come in or not, the only thing we do know is that minimum wage is going up, so I just don't see why to give money back, knowing what's coming behind it. One of the questions I had, I remember because I was part of that meeting where I approved the increase, and one of the residents clearly asked me, are you going to give it back, when will we get it back, and my answer was I don't know, because we don't know what's coming, and guess what, we don't know what's coming other than higher costs from all vendors, from everything else, so that's one of the reasons why I never promise anyone to give that money back because we just don't know. I mean anything can happen, we could get hit with another storm, we can have a new sink hole wind up on the roads, so as a District, we need to be prepared for these things before we make promises to refund money back not knowing what could happen in the near future. So, the best time to do that is, and I agree with Paul, we already we have a great budget in place, and if we're able to refinance at that time, we can pass that savings to the residents without putting the District at risk.
Mr. Cooper: How much money have we collected from our $70 increase Paul? Mr. Winkeljohn: How much money have we collected?





years.
 
Mr. Cooper: Monthly.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Well, it would be 2,269 units times $70, times the number of


Mr. Cooper: And we're in year 3 right now?
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes,  so  it was  about  $150,000,  so  probably  a  little  over
$450,000.
Mr. Cooper: So, the purpose of the increase was to replenish the reserves because we didn't have the FEMA money, why is that at $6,490 ballpark, so in theory it did what it was meant and intended for, it wasn't for projects, it wasn't to go ahead and do anything else around the District, it was to put back money in the reserves, so it served that purpose. Like I said, I don't want to give back the entire $70 right now.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, and I don't know if you said it, I just wanted to give a summary of what those funds were for, it wasn't just to replenish reserves, it was to restore things that were not insurable and not part of FEMA, so I didn't want to have that misquoted, and I know you meant it.
Mr. Cooper: Yes, thank you for clarifying.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, so you do have that. So, it's really the Board's direction.
Mr. Valladares: I think we should do it, I mean to think of giving money back, $2 or $3 a month, when we don't know what's coming down the road, I was reading that for social security, at the end of month, not December, they have to go to 6.5% and inflation is coming. Yes, things are going to cost more money, but what the District has to pay the vendors is also going up, and there's other things, like the gas, and everything else, so I like to play it safe and say no, hold on to the money, and maybe we can see further down the line what's going on.
Ms. Cabrera: I just feel that, I am not willing to look good on paper or on the minutes, because we decided to do this to return the money, and I don't feel like that would be responsible of us to do that right now because if we don't know what's coming and what's happening. I get what you're saying, it served its purpose for what it was intended that we raise money for.


Mr. Cooper: Well, if you go either way, reduce it to $24, any decision that we make on this Board whether it's next year or the year after that, we're making the best decision with the information that we have currently.
Ms. Cabrera: But we don't have the information, so we wouldn't be making the most accurate or best decision. It would be great on paper but, I mean for me I'm not a paper person, I'd rather stick to something that we really stand with, and not make false promises, that's just my thoughts.
Mr. Cooper:  What do you mean by false promises?
Ms. Cabrera: I'm going to make a promise to somebody that I don't know I could keep. I don't know if next year, considering everything that's going on, the issues that we're having with security that we're preparing to hire somebody else possibly, we don't know what's happening, wages are going up, everything that was already discussed, I don't know that I can give them the money back without having to ask for that back, and I'm not willing to do that. That's my take on that, I'd rather make a responsible decision, that's just my opinion.
Mr. Cooper: So, next year if everybody's costs are going up, we're going to continue to have the same conversation because things are going up, so when does it get to a point where you say alright, we know that things are going to go up, this is what we have currently right now, like there's security, we have the clubhouse  staff  and there's others factors involved in this, and remember, we do have contracts where they are set in stone at least for a year. So, the one that we're talking about right now, in terms of like what if, this really is our security company, so  knowing that, you could either choose to keep services the way they are, and we already know that there's an increase and what that increase is right now, and as we explore, we need to explore security companies, then we would know for the following year what we'd be looking at.
Ms. Cabrera:  We're counting on things that I'd rather get and that are to come and we're not there yet, and for me personally again, I don't want to make a promise that I'll later on need to retract because I'm going to have to ask people for  money again. Again, in my opinion, we are a Board of five, everybody can discuss and give their opinion of how they feel, but right at this very moment, I think it would be irresponsible for us to make a decision based on things that are not exactly set in stone.
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We may be able to give the money back, but right now based on what we have on hand, I don't feel comfortable deciding that we can give that money back. Again, I want to put money back in people's pockets, I pay these taxes too, but I don't want to give that false expectation and then later have them coming in here with pitch forks wanting to hang us because we have to increase yet again.
Mr. Aponte: The times that we've given them money in the past has been meaningful, that 30% savings next year, that's meaningful, that's big money, and that would make sense, and at that point as Paul mentioned, it's up to us how much of that goes back, but what I'm saying is, that's when you can make an informative decision, is phase 1 is going to get this much in savings. At that point, we'll have more information on which way we're going with the security company, and then we can make a decision based on that, not just for phase 1 refinancing, but for phase 2 as well, with whatever might be coming there. Then 2013 comes around, and then you can make a decision on 2023, how much money is going to be given back to the residents that way as well, and one, are we talking about meaningful funding, $180, that's a lot of money, that's when it makes sense, that's when you want to make your move. You try to figure out where you want your services to be, we can probably absorb some of those costs that are coming down the pike, and at the same time refund, or give that discount in tax bills to the residents that are going to make the most sense while keeping services in place. I mean that's just the best way to do it, then to promise $24, is it a lot of money, I'm not saying it's not, but to promise them that, and then turn around and say well, this is not going to work out so, we give you $2, so now I need $10, that just doesn't make any sense. Victor or Mike, do you have anything to say?
Mr. Valladares:  I think it's too soon. Mr. Cruz: It would be nice.
Mr. Winkeljohn: So, I think everyone has spoken, is there a motion to approve as presented or otherwise for resolution #2021-08?


On MOTION by Ms. Cabrera seconded by Mr. Aponte with 4 in favor, and 1 opposed Resolution #2021-08 the Annual Appropriation Resolution as presented was approved.
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	Consideration	of	Resolution	#2021-09	Levy	of	Non	Ad	Valorem Assessments

Mr. Winkeljohn: Resolution #2021-09 is the collection of the assessments which utilizes the Non Ad Valorem collection process through the county tax system, and most of you are familiar how well this works for us.   So, a motion authorizing  resolution
#2021-09 authorizes placement on the tax roll, is there a motion?


On MOTION by Ms. Cabrera seconded by Mr. Aponte with 4 in favor, and 1 opposed Resolution #2021-09 levy of Non Ad Valorem Assessments as presented was approved.
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Motion to Close the Public Hearing
Mr. Aponte:  So, item E would be a motion to close the hearing.
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MOTION by Ms. Cabrera seconded by Mr. Cooper with
·n favor, closing the Public Hearing was approved.
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FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Acceptance	of	Audit	for	Fiscal
Year Ending September 30, 2020
Mr. Aponte: Item No. 4, acceptance of the audit for the fiscal year ending September 20, 2020.
Mr. Winkeljohn: This is a very common document, you get it every year, the reflections from the auditor are in the back of the report. If anybody has any questions, I can try to answer them but, the good news is there's nothing in this audit that was brought to management or to the Board that was in violation or not in compliance with the accounting standards by the State of Florida, otherwise it's called a clean audit which you've always had, and I recommend accepting it as the audit for the District by motion.

rn-;
Ii
1        all
MOTION by Ms. Cooper seconded by Ms. Cabrera with
in favor,  accepting  the audit for  Fiscal Year  ending
-
September 30, 2020 was approved.
1
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Fl	ORDER OF BUSINESS	Staff Reports
Mr. Aponte:  Item No. Sa, attorney, what do you have for us Scott?


A. Attorney - Discussion of Memorandum on 2021	egislative Update
Mr. Cochran: Yes. This is our annual legislative update, and we're always monitoring the legislation that affects CDDs and other Special Districts, and we report once the session ends just kind of summarizing those things for you all. If you want to see any of the actual laws that are summarized in the memo, you can ask us, and we will provide you with those. So, I'm not going to highlight all of them, I'll just highlight a few of them that might be of interest. (inaudible comment) One of them deals with the notices that are given for the meetings and the public  hearings. Typically, we have always advertised those in the newspapers, they are moving towards allowing you to do that online only option, however there are caveats to that, including you would have to publish still something in the newspaper saying notices are on the website as well. So, it's probably not going to make sense, there's probably not going to be a savings to do it that way, it's something the management could consider, but it's one of those things that sounds good as an idea but not necessarily.  Another one is, and I can't remember if I described this in detail at the last meeting but, earlier in the year, back in March, the legislation did approve a law for COVID related claims, and there's one section that applies to the private businesses, and another section that applies  to  governmental entities like Districts, and basically this just sets a pretty high bar for someone if they're going to sue a governmental entity claiming that they got COVID or otherwise injured through something related to COVID. They have to go through  a  pre-suit  process where they get an affidavit from a physician that says that whatever the entity did or did not do caused it. They have to present something to the judge and then the judge can make a determination that if the government entity made a good faith effort to comply with the guidance from health authorities, or government authorities, then they're immune to the suit, so the suit would go away, even if the plaintiff was able to pass that hurdle, it's a higher burden of proof, it's not just the preponderance of the evidence, it's clear convincing evidence so all those things are just features  to  prevent  frivolous claims (inaudible comment) Another one is, I know in the past we've  talked  about drones,  and  generally  drones  are  prohibited  from  being  used  for  surveillance  type




activities, however, there are a few exceptions to that, and they've added a section which does allow drones usage to assess damage from like natural disasters, fires, or hurricanes, things like that where there's been a declared state of emergency. The type of drone does have to be on an approved list from the government and it's still subject to all normal constitutional protections, the Fourth Amendment, things like that, but it is something that can be used to assess damage or something like that which is not accessible via the ground, so I thought that might be of interest. Other than that, they're all summarized there, if you guys have any questions, let me know. (inaudible comment) With that, that's all I have to report unless anyone has any questions.
Mr. Aponte:	Does anyone have any questions for Scott?  Alright, thank you Mr.
Attorney.


Engineer
Mr. Aponte: Moving on to item B, engineer?
Mr. Quesada: Ok, just something that's currently happening in all the Districts, you guys are current zone "X" according to the flood zone mapping, you get a preferred rate. We're hearing now that there's going to be a re-mapping going on throughout all the Districts, so nothing that's going to hit us too hard on our end, we just ordered another flood eleveation certificate, but just something to keep an eye out for. We're in the process of going through that now to renew our flood insurance policy with the insurance company, so that covers engineering.

	Field Manager - Field Report

Mr. Aponte: Ok we'll move on to field manager.
Mr. Quesada: Yes, as you all had a chance to glance through the report, moving over to two items here at the clubhouse, the lake has improved drastically in Pebblebrook II, lake  #12, I know they've been monitoring that situation. I had somebody unfortunately pumping something recently, they were excited, but overall, we just checked on it the other day, it's still holding up so, that inverted issue that we were having seems to have cleared up for now. Your Smith machine should be getting delivered tomorrow, I just got a notification before we started the meeting. In the gym I'm going to make arrangements where we're going to relocate one of the bikes. The


pool, I know you guys were inspected recently, we had to shut down for about half the day. We reopened and everything is fine, so we're good on that end, we renewed our permit and all that is good to go. One of the issues we're having, and again you guys already know the issue at the pool, you know the issue of our pool here, the land shifts, we did a major repair two years ago, and all of that seems to be holding up. What's happened recently, and just so you have a little bit of perspective, is that codes for building pools has changed, we got grandfathered into that code. So, the way our pool was built to spec is still acceptable. We have to leave all our valves wide  open for circulation to meet that requirement so the floor jets, wall jets, all of that, that's what is going on. You have a very small leak in the pool, we've known that, it's two things, it could be something else, we need to order another leak test which is something we can do, we wanted to wait until after Labor Day, and what we've been doing for now is shutting off the autofill feature so that we're not diluting  the  chemicals  and  they're treating little stains that have been popping, it's been holding up for now. That was part of the issue why we got shut down for a half the day but, everything is back to normal now. We need to order a leak test to see what's going on any further. If you guys ever want to get better circulation in the pool, we're looking at a big job of lifting all the pavers and redoing the plumbing, but for now it's not a requirement that the Health Department will allow us to do that. I just want you to know that we're working with having that juggling of getting circulation,  getting chemicals in the pool, and again, the last time I checked when we did the gutter repairs, which was very minor, it's almost like your pool sweats. The way the concrete was poured, and the way water leaks out now, at least the last time I checked, is you have like little tears that come out of the  concrete basically. They look like microscopic holes almost, all throughout the entire pool, so you're not losing anything drastically by us shutting off the autofill, you're able to monitor how much water you're losing. It doesn't look like a lot because it's maybe less than an inch a day, obviously we're talking about lots of gallons, so we want to order the leak test just to get to the bottom of it when things slow down. That's the only update for the pool.
Mr. Cooper:   Do you want to entertain questions now with topics regarding that, or do you want wait until after you're done?

Mr. Quesada: Let's entertain questions with it.
Mr. Aponte: Yes, let's tackle them now since it's fresh and we're talking about it.
Mr. Cooper: Ok, so with regards to the pool, is there a way, and obviously you guys what you'd like to do here, but I mean did you notice has it been an issue with the leak, we just tackled a big roof repair, we have another year coming up as far as maybe making a difference here and changing this. I know that we've been grandfathered in but the circulation of that pool, if anyone goes swimming in it, it's sketchy sometimes with regards to things floating, water not circulating properly there. It's still clean, it does what it needs to do, . but it could be better, so I don't know if we could all look at to see about getting it done properly with the circulation, and see what that cost would be so we would know what the cost would be for the next time, coming months, or for the next year if we also decide to do that. I think the diamond bright too may not have been the best solution.
Mr. Quesada: Yes, we can re-evaluate that now, I just know that it's been about 6 years since you guys did your diamond bright, typically a good diamond bright could last you 1O years. I know it wasn't the greatest job, I think there's  a couple little imperfections but, we can revisit that and have them evaluate it again.
Mr. Winkeljohn: But it's not the original surface, it's been resurfaced. Mr. Quesada: Yes, it's already been resurfaced, correct.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Just for the record. Mr. Quesada: Yes.
Mr. Cooper: I think we need to give Ben direction so that's why I just wanted to throw that out there.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, our current pool contractor is I think sophisticated enough to give us advice, and we could ask them globally what would they recommend with this pool, and just kind of leave it open and see what they say, if it's thorough enough we can live with that at this stage, and do the leak test, go the path that Ben just laid out. At a future meeting we may want to commission a third party expert to tell us, do we need another pump system. If you trigger too many things you lose the grandfathering, so you have to watch that, there's some cost benefit there that we'd want to look at but, that would be my advice, would be just sort of solicit our vendor and see what else they

suggest we do and if we like that path, fine, if not, we can look for another expert.  Does that sound good?
Mr. Aponte:  It sounds good to me. Ms. Cabrera: Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn: And we have at least one person on the audience, so we just have to keep an eye out if they want to talk on any of these items.
Mr. Quesada: No, nothing so far.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Ok, good. What else do you have?
Mr. Quesada: Just another thing I want to bring to everyone's attention, obviously you know the flooring here is not in the best condition. We don't have to go over anything, I don't have anything concrete in general now based on anything that we've discussed prior. I know we tabled some issues as far as using an epoxy, I did speak with one of our GCs recently about getting a verbal price, at least just getting you guys a ballpark figure until we have more direction from the Board, we can bring more proposals to you. The floor in here, if you want to go with a polished concrete or an epoxy, you're looking somewhere in the neighborhood of $30,000 and that's including the bathrooms. You can do just this floor if you guys go with something that's a little bit more elevated, because you're going to have an issue with the transition of the two levels, so we're talking about, if you guys do the bathrooms as well, talking about stripping down the bathrooms, you have to remove the toilets, you're going to have to remove the partitions, so it's a big job, I just wanted to let you guys know. We're talking about over 2,000 square feet just with this space alone, plus the bathrooms. Again, I can come back with more information, but I would like to pick the Board's brain of what type of material it is that you guys are looking for so we can be specific with these contractors and come back to you with apples to apples pricing on everything. If you guys go the polished concrete route, just based on my elementary knowledge, Paul probably knows more about this subject than me because he's Mr. do it all at home, but you would have to strip down this floor, and because the concrete underneath has already had tile laid on it, you would have to grind it down, and possibly pour more cement depending on how it looks once you grind it down, and you want to get it level with the doors.  So, it is a labor intensive process, it's also a very dirty process so we'd


have to clear out this entire building, and do the same thing what we said in the bathrooms, which is strip everything down. So, you're looking at I think, again based on my initial conversation with the GC, between a commercial porcelain which I discussed with him and polished concrete, you're looking at roughly maybe a $2,000 difference give or take, somewhere in the $30,000 to $32,000 neighborhood for either option, and I can go get more specific proposals for you guys and talk to multiple contractors. I just want to know where your heads are at as far as what type of material it is that you guys want and what direction you want to go.
Mr. Aponte: Didn't the contractor say that they did not recommend the polished concrete, that the best idea, or the best thing to do is use the commercial porcelain tile?
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Yes, the GC that also does our roof said he wouldn't do it.
Mr. Quesada: I talked to two GCs when it came to that option, and neither one of them were big fans of that option. I know one of them who was pushing epoxy, I did talk to another one, and he said no, you can do the polished concrete, you would have to put a sealer on top of it, and I just explained the process to you all how that would work. So again, if you guys wanted to go that route, I think it's just buyer's choice, I mean is that the type of look you guys want to do because what look are you guys trying to go for inside the clubhouse, it's up to you, it's your clubhouse.
Ms. Cabrera: So, it's commercial porcelain versus the polished concrete? Mr. Quesada: Yes, both are an option.
Mr. Winkeljohn: The modern commercial porcelain option is as wide as you can imagine basically, the finished look, the quality of it, you can get a faux wood now. The highest level residential properties are actually using it, I'm seeing it everywhere. Back to the polished concrete, one of the biggest things is if there's a crack, you see the crack, and you can't repair it.
Ms. Cabrera: You have to patch it?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Well, it will always look like a crack, and so the polished concrete, you'll see the fill, you'll have a color differential, it will always look like that, and the second problem is slippage, It's a huge slip hazard. So, what the restaurant industry, and I don't know, it was in the 80s or 90s, but that got really popular, so the restaurants were all saying, well let's not pay for flooring, let's do a polished buffed floor,


stained concrete, they stain it beautiful, they had to score quarter inch markings all over the floor to keep it from being a slip hazard all the time because to polish it, you make it super slick, and so you have cracking potential on one side, and now you have to draw some sort of design on your Xs, I think it's 18 inches apart has to be some sort of hazard prevention inbetween each step, the foot has to hit something that's not the same surface or it's a slip hazard. So, it would look ugly, I mean unless you design a picture or something like that would look pretty, it's just not practical is the punchline.
Mr. Valladares: May I ask, I'm new on the Board, and I know this has been going around for a while, but what would be the possibility to salvage the floor that we have?
Mr. Winkeljohn: I asked the same question of Ben and he can tell you what's happening.
Mr. Valladares: What I'm hearing is, replacing the floor, which is fine, but then how is that going to impact on these things that we have here, all of that has to be taken out?
Ms. Cabrera: Or redone what we have now, I don't know, but it's an issue.
Mr. Aponte: Yes, absolutely I agree, we're talking about just what level we have to go to, but it makes complete sense if you're going to remove the toilets, you're going to remove all the fixtures in the bathroom to tile, you're going to want to update it as well, so yes, that price is going to grow, we know that, but it's still a need. Just to give you a little background, this floor was supposed to be temporary, this was a temporary repair until we were able to get the proper funding to be able to do it the correct way.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, which is the case, you have the funding now.
Mr. Aponte: Right, and so that's where we're at now is today we can actually repair it properly, and just get it done right. I mean I'm not an expert, but I think it's beyond its life expectancy, it's lifting, and I don't know that we can find any, if we have any left, I mean we're probably not going to leave it laying because it's been laying here for quite some time. So, it's just going to be that we'd do patch up work, but we have to choose, which areas we want, and what do we want to do, do want to do porcelain tile, we do porcelain tile but, yes that's the perfect time to change color, you don't want to change the color on the wall, change the reddish color, the bathrooms are in dire need
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of a remodeling, so you want to take care of all that at once.  So yes, pick your flooring, plus whatever additional costs we incur to bring the place up to date.
Mr. Cooper: If you look on the internet, Google it, and I don't know if you guys are just envisioning a grey concrete, and not just shiny, but there's all different types of colors, designs they can do in there, they could do a logo centered here for Waterstone Bay Clubhouse. So, there's a way, obviously Costco has it, and businesses have it, so if it was a slip concern, I guarantee you that Costco would not have it, or whatever they did to their flooring they did it to have a slip resistance.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  Right, you put in a sand, you seal it with sand.
Mr. Cooper: Yes, you have to non-skid it, and I like that method because there's no additional concerns. Like the first flooring that we had here was popping up, which is why we went to this flooring. So, if we do the polished concrete, at least it's something where it's not popping up, it's all maintained, and the maintenance for it is the same, and you don't have to look for supplies, materials, I mean if you got tired of the color, I guess you could do something different to it later on. At least it gives you a low maintenance, I believe unless these guys who are the experts have some other information, but it just seems like it's a lower maintenance and we can get a nice design. They even have like a thing that you can do like polished concrete and have, Ben was showing me, they have wood planks.
Mr. Quesada: Correct, that's where epoxy gets involved because that's where you lay on top of the surface to give you all these different design looks, so you could pretty much do whatever design once you get the epoxy involved.
Mr. Valladares: Well, the timeframe, we would have to have the clubhouse closed, or they can do the work at night after business hours, so it doesn't impact people.
Mr. Quesada: I would have to get back to you but I was told as far as just the grinding down portion, that was going to be a complete closure because the air would not be safe to breath in, so I believe you can lay tile almost on top of everything, but you would have to at least remove the LVT before applying tile. There at least you wouldn't have as much, but we'd probably have to shut off the A/C to be safe anyway, the air quality wouldn't be as poor.
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Mr. Aponte: You guys manage Oasis, what did Oasis do?
Mr. Quesada: Oasis went with the commercial porcelain, I mean I want you guys to go take a look at it, it's very nice and there's all types of color options out there. That is the contractor I spoke to because I felt like they did such a nice job there, I had a reference, and it's a way bigger clubhouse than we have here. So, if you guys ever want to look around, let us know, we can always table this and come back to the discussion as far as the material goes, but that's where I went and its non-slip also.
Mr. Cooper: I mean it sounds like when we were saying, that it's just going to be more than the flooring, so I know we utilized somebody last time to kind of give us the look and feel of what we have now, maybe it's time that we reach out to somebody from those contracts that we had for the clubhouse when he came out here to talk about new possible additional work on the clubhouse, maybe they have some new fresh ideas that they can give us, and we can utilize them to give us some type of redesign, even though we're not doing big additions and all of that to the clubhouse.
Mr. Aponte: It's in dire need of updating but I don't know that we need somebody to redesign it for us, we already have all the work in this. I mean a contractor can do that for you at no cost, and then just select the materials and colors and whatnot. So, I just don't keep adding expenses for no purpose, I mean we know what we need to do, it needs to be updated and we can work with the contractors as far as what they can do with these walls, where they can keep the cost lower, where bringing somebody in is going to give you great ideas, but at a great expense.  I mean that's my take on it.
Mr. Quesada: By the way, and excuse me for interrupting you, I know at least 3 GCs I can talk to and pick their brains on this for you guys, I just need a little direction as far as materials that you're interested in, because it will narrow it down for them to be able to give you guys some comparable pricing.
Mr. Aponte: Right, we get it all the time, we've been doing this long enough to know that anytime we bring an expert in to give you ideas when the contractor comes in, he says, there's no way you can do this. The contractor is the one that's going to know what you can and cannot do.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, you may as well start with that.

Mr. Aponte: So, we might as well use the contractor and let them decide ok, this is not a great idea because it's going to cost this much more, it looks beautiful but I can do the same for this much, and they're the ones that are hands on, they know what they're doing, they're ripping stuff out, so we can go that route. I don't know how you guys feel about it, I like the idea of doing porcelain tile only because if one breaks, it can be replaced, I'm concerned about the cracking with the polished concrete and we know we have tons of explosions here, so I don't know if that would make the ground shake and creating all kinds of cracks. I assume we don't want to patch up and have patch up work all over the actual floor, so I'm leaning more towards the porcelain tile.
Ms. Cabrera: And that was my concern, and that's why I asked you about the patching, just because if it were to be damaged, we would have to repair something, versus just taking the tile out.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, and there's a lot of different tiers to commercial polished floors, like the airport for instance is technically a polished concrete floor, it's a terrazzo type finish, where you basically grind all the way down, float up a whole new, two to three inches or even four inches if possible, of new material that gets polished. I mean it's very expensive, gorgeous, and even those can't be repaired as easily as a tile, so they're different ends of the spectrum, but it's really one of those things that you have to pick a decision, a place to start, like either the budget or the look, and one will force the other to come into play, but you can't pick both, so that's the hard part.
Mr. Aponte: And again, I love the polished concrete, I've seen homes that have done it, it looks beautiful.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, it's beautiful, it can be outstanding, it's really what kind of use is it going to get, malls, high traffic volume type places, but this, I don't know how to define this space, is it a meeting space, is it a workspace.
Ms. Cabrera: It's a grand room, some type of ballroom.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Right, so it's really your brains and your leadership, and what Ben started with is I need direction, so if you give him some compass headings on where to start looking, this is a lifetime process of deciding what to do with this building, it never ends, it's ongoing.
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Mr. Cooper: I would just ask if there's a way we can give a timeframe, because I know this will be like hey, we'll talk about it now, and then in November we're still talking about it, and January we're still talking about it, so it would be nice. I just want to see that the clubhouse looks nice, that's it. This flooring, this was one of Ben's first days that he was asked to do for us when he got hired a few years ago.
Mr. Quesada: It just popped up out of nowhere, but just so you know the history behind that, number one, I confirmed, what we had before was not commercial porcelain, so it was cheap porcelain, it was residential, and it was poorly laid, there was hardly anything under there, when we were lifting up the floor, there was hardly any grout or whatever you want to call it.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Thin set.
Mr. Quesada: Right, thin set, so it was doomed from the start with the temperature changing in here.
Mr. Cooper: I know but we also did get sold, like this wasn't supposed to happen to the flooring, but it obviously did.
Ms. Cabrera: As for the direction, my choice would be the porcelain tile.
Mr. Valladares: Are we going to scrap the idea of doing some remodeling to add more office space, and how would that impact putting in a new floor?
Mr. Quesada: I've discussed that, and again, the GC that just did the extension of Oasis, I picked his brain while I was here, I had him actually come over here and walk the area, just to extend the building this way, I know it sounds crazy but, you guys are looking at roughly half a million dollars according to his eyeball because you're talking about moving the HVAC systems, you're talking about beams here that are in the ceiling, if you want to continue, because if you look at how your porch pitches out that way, if you want to not have it look irregular, you'd have to redo the ceilings as well, the support structures, so you're looking at basically with everything that you guys had previously talked about, it's going to just extend that way only, roughly half a million dollars, and again, he didn't want to hold us to any price, he just said I'm going to tell you a half a million because I know we won't exceed that number, so maybe you could save a little bit here and there.
Mr. Valladares: Thank you.




Mr. Cooper: I mean we've talked over the years since 2008 about doing something in here and I mean we talked about the doors, and bring the TV out there, have the couch and actually make this a clubhouse, not a meeting space. So, if we could make some type of decision and go with that decision, and change the look and be a little displaced, if that's what everybody wants, I think we need to do that because like, I think it was Paul that was saying we do have the funds available to do certain things, if we're not doing a main project or expansion and additional buildings and all of that, then we need to utilize whatever we can do here to make it the best we can possibly make it.
Mr. Aponte: I agree, there's a lot, if we're not thinking about spending a half a million dollars we need to think about what we're going to spend in here, how can we open it up and actually make this a useful space because now it's not, and Jessica can speak to that, she's planned tons of parties here for the residents and the place has a lot of limitations where the residents can take advantage of the clubhouse, even if it's small, even a rental, it's just not a usable space, so I agree. So, if we're going to go and do it, let's do it right and get the proper pricing and see, we can do it in phases, but figure out what phase comes first and then we'll add it, and every year we can complete a project and if it's something that we can't afford in one shot, then let's do it in two, and then let the contractors decide what phase needs to go first, and then we'll take it from there, but we'll have a finish line where we're going to have a finished product in a year or two or whatever it may take, so I 100% agree.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Ok.
Mr. Aponte: Anything else?
Mr. Cooper: On that, I know we had some members of our community from I don't know last year, before we had COVID, talking about extending the hours of the pool and adding lighting outside by the pool so you can make it available longer than sunset. I don't know if we're looking at doing that, whatever we're doing here for the clubhouse, is that something the Board wants to entertain still and looking into doing that, or do you just want to just table that?
Ms. Cabrera: Extending the hours of the pool?
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Mr. Cooper: Like I think you did a light study, and they said you need X amount of lights, these are the type of lights that we would need, we looked through a whole bunch of lights.
Mr. Quesada: Well, we were talking to Mr. DiMarco and looking into with the city I believe there was some permits and photoelectric study and whatnot, and I think the Board tabled it at that time. We were looking at somewhere, and don't quote me, but I think we were looking at $12,000 to $15,000 somewhere in that range, was the ballpark figure, I have it on the project list, but I didn't bring it with me to the meeting.
Mr. Cooper: It was like 6 or 7 lights.
Mr. Quesada: Right, along the back of the pool, if you guys wanted to extend the hours of the pool beyond sunset.
Mr. Cooper: One of the concerns at the time was lighting going into people's homes and the specific lights where you could direct range so that wouldn't be a concern with people's homes that live next door to the clubhouse. I like what we did here with the speakers, how we have them directionally pointing away from everybody's houses to reduce the noise pollution.
Mr. Valladares:  My question to that would be, how much usage it would have from the resident if we do that and extend the hours, we're going to have to extend the hours of the security personnel and what is the gain versus the problems that could cost. I couldn't see extending it right now, if it was something that was going to benefit the community, how many people are going to come here at 8:00 or 9:00 o'clock, because right now it doesn't get dark until almost around 8:00 o'clock, but in a couple of months, by 6:00 o'clock it will be dark.
(At this point several peo ple were talking at one time, and no one conversation could be heard)

Mr. Cooper: Whatever they want to do safety-wise but, you know it gives the option to come out here, swim laps, have stress relief, like to just kind of forget the day, the problems or whatever. I know it doesn't seem like it, but I know it was a concern that was brought up by several residents is obviously a heated pool as well, that was the number one item of those topics that they were looking at getting here.
August 26, 2021
South-Dade Venture COD



Mr. Valladares: I think what's going to happen, we're going to have extended hours and maybe have one or two families over there or something like that come over.
Mr. Aponte: Well, it has to go hand in hand, in wintertime the water is cold, not a lot of people use the pool, so we would have to heat the pool in order for people to want to use it, and then you wouldn't get, most of the usage of the lighting in the wintertime based on the time change.  In the summertime you get 90% of the use of the pool, and it stays light until 8:00 or 8:30, so you're getting also pretty much the most hours of the day, then for 1 % or maybe 2 hours, we've got lighting and they can stay there until 8:00, so we need to balance that out. I'm not against it, I'm not saying I'm for it, it doesn't hurt to look into it, but it would probably have to be a project that would separate from the clubhouse itself, the maintenance and repairs and remodeling of this clubhouse and then tackle that on when it's time to maybe change the filters and upgrade, and get the pool up to standard codes at whatever time we do it, then that may be the time to look into heating, that would be the time to look into lighting, and then tackle that project as one separate project and go with whatever funds need to be put in there without having to tie or restrict the amount we're going to use here, because we have another project outside. So, I would say let's do it in two different phases, let's tackle the inside first, and then tackle the pool later, but like I said, I'm not against it or for it, at this very moment it would be something that could be another future project.
Mr. Cooper: I'm sorry, remember the solar panel discussion that we had that we were going to be entertaining to help for some of these additional costs.
Mr. Quesada: I'm going to invite the GC that did the Oasis project over here, I know some of his advice he doesn't mind giving free of charge, also some of it he's not qualified, he needs to consult with architects and all of that, and maybe give you guys a rough budget of what further exploration would cost and we can go from there.
Mr. Aponte: And then we can reach out to the residents, like we've always said we were going to do. Let's talk to them and see what they would like to see, and then present it to the residents, here's what we're looking at, we can add all these items, it's going to cost this much, you're going to have to pay this much more, or it's going to cost this much, it's going to stay the same. So, we should present it to the residents, but yes,


we need to have an informative plan of action in order to present it to the residents, but as far as the interior of the clubhouse, we're definitely overdue for a rehaul.
Mr. Quesada: Ok, so I'll bring a GC over here so we can get a little deeper into a discussion on that.
Mr. Aponte:  Perfect. What else do you have? Mr. Quesada:  I'm done, it's Paul's turn now.






	Manager
	Consideration of Proposed Fiscal Year 2022 Meeting Schedule
	Discussion of Financial Disclosure Report from the Commission on Ethics and Reminder to File Annual Form

Mr. Winkeljohn: Alright, so we have the proposed fiscal year 2022 meeting schedule which is an annual requirement. Your meetings always fall on the holidays, so we bump a couple of them up a week, so it should be something that you're used to, is there a motion?
Mr. Copper: I'm just throwing this out there, we could entertain a time change or keeping it at 4:00 o'clock, just entertaining a possible later time, obviously a lot of residents were concerned that they were too early. At one point, back in the day, we did make it later and there wasn't a lot, but then there wasn't a lot of involvement either.
Mr. Aponte: I mean I'm all for it, it doesn't really matter what we do, one, nobody shows up, and you read all the different messages that you're seeing in all these websites, they call us the gardening club, I guess whoever says we're the gardening club means that they're offending us, but that's what we do, we take care of maintenance of the grounds, and we take care of maintenance of the drainage and sewage of the club, but what I'm getting to is, yes we can entertain it but, lately we're getting this group of people wanting to attend our meetings because there's supposedly always stuff going on, and there's really nothing going on, so I don't have a problem having one or two or three meetings at different times, maybe we can fluctuate where we can pick every other month to hold them later.


Mr. Winkeljohn: Well, let's not blur the topic,  you have to  have a meeting schedule, if you adopt this, that's one thing. The second thing is, you want to change it and you want to have a couple night meetings, that's always been at your latitude, you can do that at any time, and you can debate it at any time, but you do need to do this to meet the State Statute.
Mr. Aponte: Yes, so then the bottom line is we can move it around and back to the discussion, yes, I don't have a problem with it if we change it, but like Paul said, we have to adopt a schedule.
Mr. Cooper: So, we have to adopt this right here, we can adjust it?
Mr. Winkeljohn: It's better to do a uniform meeting schedule and then pick when you want to do a night meeting, or what you want to change it to when you've talked about it.
Mr. Cooper: I mean if that's what you recommend, I'm ok with that, but I know they would like to see if maybe every third meeting or quarterly meetings that we make it later so that those who cannot attend will be able, and then this way at the end of the year, if there's 3 people that showed up for the meetings, or halfway through the year, like the first 2 meetings no one shows up, we can say ok, we did this and nobody showed up. I don't want to be like hey, we tried this 8 years ago and it didn't work out, but we're in a different climate right now.
Mr. Aponte:  No, I agree, I understand, I don't have a problem with it.
Mr. Winkeljohn: It's up to you, if you want to pick some days and change them, we can do that now, that's totally fine. One of the benefits of having the same time is that everything builds around it.
Mr. Aponte: Right, and I don't think we need to choose them right now, we can keep it open, again we have holidays and everything else coming up.


On MOTION by Ms. Cabrera seconded by Mr. Aponte with all in favor, accepting the proposed Fiscal Year 2022 Meeting Schedule was approved.
file_8.bin



Mr. Winkeljohn:	Item 2, everyone here has sent in their forms, one of your former Board members still apparently has not.  When you're on the Board, you still
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have to file your Form 1 in June even though you've resigned and you have to file a Form 1F to pull you out of the system at the same time, apparently that hasn't happened with Sonia, we've communicated with her but she has to do it or she's probably going to be fined, so she's been given every opportunity, so no action on that, and that's the conclusion of the manager's report.
Mr. Cooper:	Just  real quick  here,  I noticed that we do  have a  meeting  in September, is that correct on here?
Mr. Winkeljohn: September is this fiscal year, we have a meeting every month. Mr. Cooper: Ok, I understand that, thank you

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Financial  Reports
	Approval of Check Run Summary
	Balance Sheet and Income Statement

Mr. Aponte:  Moving on to item No. 6, financial reports, approval of the check run summary and balance sheet and income statement, we need a motion for this.


On MOTION by Mr. Cooper seconded by Mr. Valladares with all in favor, the Check Run Summary and Balance Sheet and Income Statement were approved.
file_9.bin




SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Supervisors	Requests
Audience Comments
Mr. Aponte: Item No. 7 Supervisors requests and audience comments.
 and
Mr. Quesada:	I have an audience member who wants to comment.	Mr. Alonzo, are you still there on the line?
Mr. Alonzo:  I am.
Mr. Quesada: Ok, go ahead, the floor is yours.
Mr. Alonzo:	Ok, I have one question of the FEMA dollars, how much of that has been recouped?
Mr. Quesada:	Of the FEMA dollars that were sent to us, how much has been recouped?


Mr. Winkeljohn: I don't understand the question. There are two topics, how much did the District spend because of a hurricane, how much was eligible by FEMA, and how much of that eligible amount was recouped, is that how the question is worded?
Mr. Alonzo: Yes.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Ok, so your total costs were in the $200,000 range, in terms of recovery, replacement is a different conversation, but we presented to FEMA and recovered, we still have one large payment coming in the next 30 days, so it will be about 90% of that.   So, we've received about $100,000 total to date, and we have another
$130,000 coming in the next month.
Mr. Alonzo: So, about $230,000 total?
Mr. Winkeljohn: Yes, $226,000 to be exact.
Mr. Alonzo: Ok, so the question, and I hear the conversation earlier, but I just want to put it on the record, because the record is a beautiful way for people to see the truth. For $230,000 that has been returned, this Board chose today not to return that money to the resident taxpayers, although the premise of the tax hike a couple of years ago was to mitigate that loss, but yet now that the money has been recouped, we are keeping that tax revenue and continuing to collect that tax revenue, would those be correct statements?
Mr. Winkeljohn: No, Mr. Alonzo we have not recouped $230,000 yet, everything that is recouped we are slated to have collected over the course of the last 4 years,
$226,000, we're still expecting a check for $133,000 that has not arrived yet, so subtract
$133,000 from $226,000, and that's what we have received thus far, about $100,000,nd there's a missing sentence in your description.
Mr. Alonzo: So, we have collected a tax revenue, so the total would be to mitigate what was not collected, but now that we have collected, this Board has chosen today based on the conversation that I heard, not to return the collected amount, and continue to collect on that tax hike, is that correct?
Mr. Aponte: That's a completely incorrect statement. Mr. Alonzo: Ok.
Mr. Aponte: You're looking at different forms of the funding that was coming in, you're talking about just the collecting of the funds that were used to basically bring up the


property that was paid for to clean up all those major expenses that we took on for storm cleanup. There's another portion of it, and that's replacement, which is our job as the District to do, the trees that came down had to be replaced. That aspect of it is not in your numbers, so to say that $233,000 we've collected so far, and that we need to give back to the residents when the actual community is not fully restored yet is a false statement.
Mr. Alonzo: Ok, but of the money collected.
Mr. Aponte: Zero has been returned back to the residents because the District itself has not restored itself back to where it needs to go.
Mr. Alonzo: Ok, thank you.
Mr. Aponte: Any other questions?
Mr. Alonzo: So, when the tax hike was presented, it was presented because we had the emergency, and we needed to gather funds to mitigate that, not knowing if FEMA would restore us, but now that we know that FEMA has restored us, now the story has changed, that's ok, it's on the record.
Mr. Aponte: The story has not changed, you're changing the story, the story has never changed. There were two aspects, there was the aspect to bring the community back to where it needed to be as far as being able to enter into the community, clean the aera up, otherwise it would have sat there, I think the residents would have wanted us to clean up the place, and that's one part of it. The second part of it is the restoration, bringing the trees back, building the land that was destroyed by the storm, fencing, there was a lot of things that needed to come back, so there was two portions of it, you're only choosing because you want to choose just that one portion which is the part of the cleanup, which was the most expensive. What we did as a District is we broke it down so that we could actually do it in phases so that the residents wouldn't have to absorb such a large amount of funds going out of our pockets all at once. So, the information you're providing as always is incorrect.
Mr. Alonzo: Just the portion of the cleanup, the portion of the cleanup which was part of that tax rate hike, that has been 90% I was just told recouped, so that portion, just that portion.


Mr. Aponte: That's what I'm saying of the eligible amount. Can you rephase that again, because we can't hear and we're not understanding your question.
(At this point several people were talking at one time, and no one conversation could be heard)

Mr. Aponte: Do you have any other questions or comments? Thank you, anyone else? Alright, moving on to Supervisors requests. Curtis, I'll start with you, maybe you want to address some of this?
Mr. Cooper: As far as, from what I understood with Ed was getting confused towards the end, there was the 90%, he was saying it was already recuperated, it's if we received $136,000ish or whatever that number is Paul.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  It's $133,000 to be exact.
Mr. Cooper: So, the $133,000 that we will have recuperated 90% of the cleanup costs, not including all the materials that we had purchased for the repairing of the fence.
Mr. Winkeljohn: It's very complicated.
Mr. Cooper: And there's additional other things along with that, so I don't know if that answers that question.
Mr. Winkeljohn:  I think we've covered it. Mr. Aponte: Yes.
Mr. Cooper: As far as what I have, I wanted to see, I know we were improving the gym in there. As far as the gym for improvements, we have a new machine coming in, I was thinking about possibly, and I know you guys said that a lot of people don't use bikes in there, I don't know what you guys think as far as a Peloton type of set up where you can actually have somebody on a video screen and maybe that would generate, it's a newer technology bike, and people could do spinning, and maybe that might be something that we could entertain, I don't know about the cost, I don't know if Ben had a chance to look or find anything out about that.
Mr. Quesada: Can I make a recommendation for now, we're going to get the Smith machine delivered tomorrow, if we can squeeze anything else in there, I'd be happy to talk to the gentleman that's doing the installation, then we can bring it back to the Board if it's anything above our discretion.



Mr. Cooper: I just want to make sure that they even want to entertain that. I know we have one bike still in there, correct, so it would probably be replacing that bike, I don't think we're going to have room to add any additional equipment.
Mr. Quesada: No, but that bike is out of warranty for a few years now so that is something that we can bring back. Let me see how we can squeeze that in, I know how we're going to squeeze in the Smith machine here in this corner, beyond that I can't guarantee you anything, but once we can see the layout of the room, I think we'll have a better idea what else we can put in the if possible, and find out pricing on it, no problem.
Mr. Cooper: Ok, great. Then moving off the clubhouse topic, entertaining the guards, can you give us like a status update from where we were last month to where we are this month, and the scheduled training, if all the guards have been trained, if you could just give us like a run down.
Mr. Quesada:  I believe that was in the agenda as far as just the training schedule. I know it wasn't as detailed as we like, but we got the name of some of the new guards, and all of them, at least log the date with either Tommy or Victor, so at least we're getting that portion of it. I know there was another portion of it that they said that they were going to give us their plan, what happens when you have an abandoned guardhouse. To be fair, I haven't seen anything like that occurring, I've seen long breaks, stuff like that, but it's not been unmanned since our last meeting that I can recall, so at least that type of activity hasn't happened. I'm not seeing a huge difference particularly at guardhouse 1 during the second shift in particular, that is where we seem to be having the biggest issues, everywhere else has been pretty stable. I know on occasion on the weekends at guardhouse 3, we're having some issues as well. We found a really good morning supervisor at guardhouse 3 during the week, she's doing a great job over there, so I don't want to overlook some people, some hires we made, so she's doing an excellent job here at the clubhouse. Kim is working at the guardhouse in the morning over there so they made some pretty good hires as well, so I'd say it's 50/50, I've seen maybe some improvement, but not enough.
Mr. Cooper: Now, with regards to the ones that are not really fitting in well, what's the process as far as having them relocated?
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Mr. Quesada: That's been a little bit of an issue that I'm trying to work through right now, I just met with the onsite supervisor before the meeting, it's a conversation that I need to have with upper management, it feels like he may not have the green light to be able to do so, and so based on our conversation, I'm going to make another phone call to management. They know we're coming up on that second month, they did revise their proposal, they did bring their margin, with the increase that we're talking about so that the increase goes directly to the guards, so that is something that is worth looking at but, if the Board wants to look at other options, I think that is the proper time since you're talking with them to look and see what else is out there, and that's what I want to bring to you guys at the next meeting.
Mr. Cooper: Ok.
Mr. Valladares: Well, I'm a little disappointed with what went on from the last meeting to today, I specifically asked them to give us some type of written program how they were going to address the issues that we've had and how that will be corrected, and trained, and hear the picture of what is going to be 30 days or 60 days, or how they're going to measure whether they were successful or not, and to this day, I'm still sitting here waiting for that report, and apparently, it's not coming.
Mr. Quesada: I sent several emails reminding them of that. Mr. Valladares:  Yes, I know you have, I'm well aware of it.
Mr. Cooper: So currently obviously, we can't work too fast on this but, I would like when you do speak with the higher ups, that you find a timeframe that's reasonable that when we do have an issue with the guard that's continuously there, and they're still there for a week or two weeks, ask where they should have been, that's unacceptable, that's really ruining our brand at Waterstone, and how we, the Board of Supervisors, care for this community, and how you all care for this community, that's really just unfair as far as our customer service level, the care level, we have protocols in place that are protocols and they should be followed, and not deviated from. If somebody deviated from them, if they have a valid reason for deviating, like a safety concern or something like that, by all means, but whether we're just doing our own protocols, there's no reason why that's occurring.


Mr. Quesada: One issue I do want to bring up and I've heard it from multiple and dependable sources, Tommy for example had to a work a few nights, Morales and even Victor who's worked a few nights, scanning IDs with the lighting at times, depending on the brightness of the light and whatnot is not as consistent if you want to get it done in a timely fashion, however, they understand, and not every guard is following this, is that an attempt needs to be made, and after a short period of time you can't scan it, then enter it manually, there's both options on the table. So, just skip one and go straight to the other is not what we're asking for or want out of the guards, so to be fair, at night just keep that in consideration if you see something like that, an attempt should be made and that was made to clear to management to scan the ID, and if they're having any lighting issues, or any inconsistency issue to go ahead and put it in manually.
Mr. Cooper: Well, that was going on daytime at 3:00 o'clock today when I came in the community. As far as that, if that's something we can reach out to Kevin for as a solution for our lighting problems, that would probably be something that we would need to look into, just a suggestion.
Mr. Quesada: Ok.
Mr. Cooper: As we upgrade, and spent the money to upgrade the system, because their system was outdated, slow wasn't working for the guards, now we have a system that's working when it's utilized, and obviously there's something like the lighting that's an issue that's not working for them, then we need to do everything in our power to correct that so that there's no excuses as to why the system is not being utilized, because it's great if you get somebody's name, but there's an issue that happens within the District when there's no license that could have been accompanied by that person's vehicle and all of that, then we're missing out on information that could help us move it forward with something that happens with the District.
Mr. Quesada:  I have an idea too I want to talk with him about it.
Mr. Cooper: Ok, and along those lines, I mean this is something that you guys aren't seeing a change in, and Victor hasn't received information he's asked for, are we looking at or are we doing like an RFP on this, or what would be the protocol for getting another contractor?
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Mr. Cochran: I mean, I don't believe the District has adopted rules requiring a RFP process for security, that would be the only thing that would require it under the law for the services you have requiring to do a formal sealed bid RFP process, so unless it's something that the Board has adopted a rule on, and I'm not aware of it now, and I don't know if Paul is aware of any.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Not for security. Mr. Cooper: Ok.
Mr. Quesada: No, you don't need to but I've already, again, since we're going to be talking about possibly adding an addendum to our current contract, is the time to talk to other people, I've already began that process with at least 3 other companies, so there will be some other options on the table when you guys look at what Allied is proposing.
Mr. Cooper: Thank you.
Mr. Valladares: I think personal contact with either the present vendor, or any future proposals that we're going to have, rather than just an email which is very impersonal, we need to sit down, you as the field supervisor and Mayra should sit down with them, if they can't come over here, sit down with you, and work out the numbers and work some of those numbers, and hear from you because you're our representative, if they can't do that, then we don't need to entertain their proposal.
Mr. Quesada: Correct.
Mr. Valladares: I want that personal contact which is on that report, and one of the big things that I would request that please have, whether it's going to be the current security company or not, they have to have somebody that comes in at least once a shift and see the guard and how the guard's uniform looks, how this guy looks, because that's what our residents are seeing, and especially when you have the guards who are wearing the Waterstone emblem, they don't see it as a security guard for X,Y,Z company, they see, that's a Waterstone employee. So, we need to approach those ideas and sit down and explain to them, and like I said, either don't talk the talk, just walk the walk.
Mr. Quesada: So, one of the things that Paul and I have been discussing and just so you know, it's happening and it's pretty much the standard now in the industry which is, they've taken out and cut away the middle management, I mean to the point where you


have one account manager with 30 or 40 accounts to the point that you're not getting that personal attention that we're promised.
Mr. Valladares: We don't need to be numbers, I don't need to be a number on the company that is out in Texas somewhere.
Mr. Quesada: So, we have some ideas as far as how to be able to do that, and we do have a little leverage when it comes to how we negotiate with them, and I think we have to demand that we get some type of dedicated person that does guarantee that they're going to be visiting the property and have assurances in the contract for that.
Mr. Valladares: I am one that says, the members of this Board should stay out of dealing with vendors, especially with the security company, that's for you guys to do, but we may have to be from time to time given some idea of what's happening between your collective bartering, for lack of calling it something else.
Mr. Quesada: Understood, we'll be presenting some options at the next meeting, and we'll be meeting with anybody that's willing to meet onsite in the meantime.
Mr. Cooper: The only other thing I have is, I want to thank you, and I know we made the decision to have banners in the community, I believe everybody, I haven't heard any complaints, I've actually had people compliment how well it looks, the annuals, everything was fine. Also, there's little things here and there with weeds around certain areas of the District, butBrightView is doing what they do to be able to keep us going. (inaudible comment) So, thank you, it looks good.
Mr. Quesada: I'll pass it around. Mr. Aponte: Jessica?
Ms. Cabrera: I would like to entertain the idea of other security companies, and hopefully they can, like he says maybe come and do a presentation, that we can see, meet with these people. I agree that we should kind of stay away from vendors but, maybe they can present a product to us, I definitely think that Allied is, we're too far in with excuses and I'm over it. So, I'd like to entertain that, and I'll refrain from making any other comments that I would like to make.
Mr. Aponte: Ok. I don't have much to say other than, first of all thank you for passing the 2022 budget, it's not easy to sit here and play with resident's money but, as the representatives of the community, those decisions have to be made whether we're
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going to be liked or disliked. I'm not here to be liked or disliked, I'm here to make the right decision for the residents so that we can keep them happy and safe, and that's the whole idea behind this. One more thing that I wanted to add, just to clarify because I just love how people like to throw numbers around, and I should know better because I've been doing this for a while but, it still rubs you the wrong way when people spread lies and unfortunately you know what happens with lies, they just go crazy out there and everyone hears what they want. So, it's been tough, when we made the decision to collect the additional funding to bring the District back to it's glory, because I know all of you here are proud of Waterstone, we love the way it looks, we walk the neighborhood, we see the improvements that we've done in the past, and we do that because we care, because we live here, because we pay those taxes ourselves, and we've been doing it for quite sometime and we've seen the way the community has grown. It's gone from this little tiny community to this large community, and what I mean by that is it's filled with residents, and then in addition to that, we've seen the way the trees have grown, I'm pretty sure all the neighborhoods around us envy us with the growth of our oaks and even the ugly banyan trees but, you know just seeing that, and now with the new restoration we've added trees that are blooming at different times which makes it very welcoming. Having said that, that comes with a cost and I think we have been very responsible with the funding as it came in and phasing it in, and doing the right things to get the District back to where it needed to be, and at one point there will be an opportunity for us to make that decision that maybe those funds will not need to be collected, but for somebody to come in and say, that we should refund half of the money because half of it is done, not knowing all the ins and outs of the District, it's irresponsible, and those residents need to get a little bit more informed, and I hope that the residents that read our minutes or even listen into our meetings can come to the right sources to get the information so that they understand that we're just like you, we live here, we love the neighborhood, so we go to work and we come home and we want to stay safe, we want to see the improvements in the District, it's no different than what you guys want, it's just that we have to sit here and make those decisions and those are tough decisions. That's all I got.
Mr. Winkeljohn: Very good.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Adjournment
Mr. Aponte: Then, item No. 8, we need a motion to adjourn.


On MOTION by Ms. Cabrera seconded by Mr. Valladares with all in favor, the Meeting was adjourned.
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